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Frequently Asked Questions

1. The DRAFT SIR contains sites in Section B that still have option years left on existing contracts.  What happens to these existing options?

All existing CWO contracts that are currently in their base year or in an exercised option year will remain in full force and effect, in accordance with the language contained in those existing contracts.  The DRAFT SIR does contain option years that include CWO sites that already have existing contracts with future options. 

The Government retains the right to exercise all, some, or none of the CLINs for an option year in any contract in accordance with the FAA’s Acquisition Management System (AMS).  

2. Are there any plans to add sites from the FAA New England (ANE), Northwest Mountain (ANM) or Alaska (AAL) regions?

There are no plans to add sites located in the FAA New England (ANE), Northwest Mountain (ANM) or Alaska (AAL) regions under Draft SIR’s DTFA01-02-R-031130 or DTFA01-02-R-03113. 

3. Can the due date for proposal submissions be extended?

No. Due to the compressed acquisition schedule involved with this competition, no extensions for proposal submissions is planned once the final SIR’s are released. 

4. Is there a page limit for proposal responses?

No. The only page limit is in relation to the resumes submitted. See Section L.17.1 of the Draft SIR DTFA01-02-R-031130 and DTFA01-02-R-03113.

5. Can a vendor submit a proposal for a single site?

No. Offerors who wish to compete for these awards must submit proposals for service at all sites within a CWO Group.  

6. Is there any intention for these new awards to have automatic payment?

No. Prime contractors will be required to submit invoices on a monthly basis for each contract.  The FAA’s Accounting Office at Headquarters will pay contractors through Electronic Funds Transfer within 30 days of receipt of invoice.

7. Does the restriction on maximum awards to one Offeror apply to the successful Offeror separately in each SIR? For example, should a large business successfully bid Group 2 and 4 in the full and open competition and win both groups, would they be restricted from award of any contracts in the Set-Aside SIR if they were a subcontractor to, or a minority team member, to a small business?
There is no limitation on how many CWO Groups an individual vendor can participate in as a team member or subcontractor. The only limitation on awards is for prime contracts with no vendor being awarded more than two prime contracts per Draft SIR. 

8. Currently the Service Contract Act requires that weather observers accrue vacation by length of time at a job site or with an employer.  This puts all incumbents at a significant disadvantage over anyone else bidding for the site.  For example, the wage determination calls for 2 weeks of vacation after one year of service.  This means that a new contractor who, to be competitive, has to bring in new employees who do not incur vacation until after the first year of the contract while the incumbent incurs vacation immediately.  The incumbent is forced to bid at a significantly higher price than other contractors (if they follow the rules and do not make "under the table" deals with employees).  Additionally, it means that the current employees at the site are likely to be let go and have to find employment elsewhere or relocate, at their own expense, to another location.  This has and continues to hurt everyone including the weather observers who loose their jobs every 2 to 5 years.

Since the vacation pay requirements are memorialized in Federal Law, the bids should be evaluated without vacation being considered.  In fact, the evaluation policy must be changed as the current practice has become a real hardship for employees, and is really an unfair contracting practice, especially when compliance with the law causes a contractor to lose a bid.

Vacation pay requirements will be evaluated in accordance with the Service Contract Act.

9. Is there a logical reason why the FAA has set up its 10 groups as it has.  I would expect that the government would make each of the 10 groups with the same number of stations and that they would geographically contiguous.

The CWO Team reviewed the requirements and made a business decision to organize the sites into 10 groups.

10. What happens when two entities, each of them a small business with a three-year average of $300,000 gross income, team up?  The total gross in this case is $600,000.  Doesn’t that make the teaming group a “large business?”

Under the CWO Program, the small business size determination is made solely on the potential prime contractor’s average annual gross receipts over the past three years.  A small business size determination is not made on the team’s combined three-year average gross receipts.

11. During the seven years we have been in this business we have seen several instances where contractors have “low balled” bids and, as a result have failed to pay employees, be removed from the contract, or on their own, figured a way to get out of the contract.  In all cases everyone was hurt, and competent, qualified contractors were denied a legitimate opportunity.

The FAA must prepare its own cost model for each site, and implement a rule that no contract will be award for a bid below cost.  Additionally, the FAA should require detailed cost breakdown sheets for each site to insure that all labor hours are accounted for.

The FAA will not identify a bid cost for each site and/or group.  Section J, Attachment 5 of Draft SIR’s DTFA01-02-R-031130 and DTFA01-02-R-03113 contain 3 separate spreadsheets that must be completed.  The spreadsheets are broken down to the CLIN levels.

12. The Projected Milestone Schedule will not allow ample time for small businesses to adequately respond to the proposed SIR.

We have issued draft SIR’s DTFA01-02-R-031130 and DTFA01-02-R-03113 to provide extra time for the preparation and organization of proposals in response to our requirement.  We are under a tight schedule and must make award by August 31, 2002 to ensure continuity of weather observation services.  At this time we do not intend on extending the due date for proposal submission past May 10, 2002.

13. What is the FAA’s definition of “teaming?”  How does it anticipate “teaming” will be utilized?

Under the CWO Program, teaming is defined as a contractor arrangement in which a potential prime contractor agrees with one or more other companies to have them act as its subcontractors. 

The FAA anticipates that teaming will be utilized to enable the potential prime contractor to complement its capabilities; and offer the Government the best combination of performance, cost, and delivery for the services being procured.

14. Does the FAA have an idealized management structure or management model established for this project?

The FAA does not have an idealized management structure or management model for this requirement.

15. Are the site groupings subject to change?
No.  The site groupings under Draft SIR’s DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130 will not change.

16. Section F, para. F.9, page F-3, states that weather observers who work on a holiday must be paid double-time in accordance with 29 CFR, part 4.  29 CFR, part 4 neither states nor implies this concept.  29 CFR, part 4, section 4.174 (a)(1) states that, "an employee who performs any work during the workweek in which a named holiday occurs is entitled to the holiday benefit...".  With 4.2 full time employees (168 hours in a workweek, divided by 40 hours per week), each receiving the holiday benefit, the total holiday benefit would equal 33.6 hours.  The "double-time" concept for those working on the holiday would result in 24 hours of holiday benefit.  This is less than is required under 29 CFR, part 4.  Also, section 4.174, section (c)(1) states that, "a full-time employee who is eligible to receive payment for a named holiday must receive a full day's pay up to 8 hours..." (emphasis added).  Additionally 29 CFR, part 4, section 4.176 (a)(3) states that, "Holiday or vacation pay obligations to temporary and part-time employees working an irregular schedule of hours may be discharged by paying such employees a proportion of the holiday or vacation benefits due full-time employees" (emphasis added).  This also has ramifications for Section L, para. L.18.3.3.2.2.1, page L-13.

Weather Observers assigned to work on a holiday will receive holiday pay for time worked.  Section F.9 and L.18.3 of DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130 will be revised

17. Section H.22, para. H.22.1., page H-16.  We would like to see this paragraph clarified by adding the following phrase (from 29 CFR part 4, section 4.173 (d)(1):  "The contractor by whom a person is employed at the time the vacation right vests, i.e., on the employee's anniversary date of employment, must provide the full benefit required by the determination which is applicable on that date."

Your comment has been considered and we have determined that it is currently covered under 29 CFR. 

18. Section H.26, para H.26.1, page H-17 should include Occupation Code 29620 Senior Weather Observer and Occupation Code 29621 Weather Observer, Combined Upper Air and Surface Programs.  This change should also be included in Section J, List of Attachments.  Also, the second sentence of H.26.1 refers to air traffic controller services--should this refer to weather observation services?

The final version of the SIR will include both Occupational Codes in Sections H & J; and will reflect weather observation services.

19. Section H.26, para H.26.3, page H-18.  Since wage determinations are routinely adjusted by the DOL, what is the rationale for including escalations in the proposal/offer.

Under DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130 this requirement is being included for evaluation purposes. 

20. Section L, para. L.5, page L-3.  Both draft solicitations contain this same clause although only one draft solicitation contains eight possible awards, while the other draft solicitation contains two possible awards.

Draft SIR DTFA01-02-R-03113 contains 8 groups with 8 possible awards and Draft SIR DTFA01-02-R-031130 contains 2 groups with 2 possible awards.  This information will be reflected in the Final version of the SIR’s.

21. Section L, para. L.18.3.3.2.2, Page L-13, states that, "If the proposed wage escalation factor is unreasonably low and/or there is no wage escalation factor, the proposal will be considered unacceptable".  Will this escalation factor be evaluated separately for each option year or will it be evaluated for all option years in aggregate?  Are the DRI data (3.3%) meant to reflect escalation factors for each option year separately or the total escalation factor for all four option years in aggregate?

The escalation factor for each option year under Draft SIR’s DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130 will be evaluated separately.  The DRI data is meant to reflect each option year separately.  

22. If a small firm teams with a large business what percent of contract must they perform?

Under Draft SIR DTFA01-02-R-03113 for 100% set-aside the small business must perform 51% of the effort.

23. Can a firm be awarded two groups as a prime contractor, yet team or subcontract in other regions?

       Yes.  The Contractor can only act as the Prime Contractor on 2 contracts.

24. If two firms team can they share technical and business proposal information between groups if they are working as a team or subcontractor across these groups?  Will funds for both the prime and subcontractor be consider for financial capability?
The team will submit the technical and business proposal as a team.   No, the Prime will be considered for the financial capability. 

25. What do you consider the difference between teaming and subcontracting?

Subcontracting is one type of contractor team arrangement.  Under the CWO Program, a potential prime contractor agrees with one or more other companies to have them act as its subcontractors.  

26. If two firms who have historically provided these services merge and create a new corporation to compete, how will their past performance be considered? 

Past Performance of each firm will be considered individually.

27. Do you have a certain percentage of cash to lines of credit that you would like to see possessed by each firm?

Section L.18.3.3.2.5 of the Draft SIR DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130 requires that a firm have enough financial resources to cover all CLIN’s within the group for a period of 90 days. 

28. What would be the difference in scores on the technical, business proposals between any two contractors, which would make price or past performance the deciding factor for award?

All proposals in response to Final SIR’s DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130 will be awarded in accordance with Section M.

29. Can price be negotiated after the submittal of the proposal?
No, except for any clarification we request.

30. How would the FAA determine which groups will be awarded to a company if that company wins more than two groups? 

Under DTFA01-02-R-03113 a Contractor cannot win more than 2 groups. See Section M.1.1

31. California State Law says “anyone who works more than eight (8) hours a day will be paid overtime for those hours”. How will this be treated in the bidding process if the FAA allows 10-hour shifts?

Under Draft SIR’s DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130 the normal tour of duty for California CWO sites shall be eight hours per day and 40 hours per week.  Extended periods (more than one week) of work for any weather observer beyond the normal 8 hours per day/40 hours per week shall require the prior approval of the contracting officer.  This change to Section C.4.1 will be reflected in final version of the SIR.

32. Does the FAA require us to submit resumes of all the employees for each location that we proposed to hire or just the supervisors? Or does the FAA require us to provide a brief description on each individual?

Draft SIR’s DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130 will be revised to reflect just the management team and not the weather observers themselves.

33. How would you consider a company that is bidding on the two contracts that are open to all businesses? What kind of background would the FAA be looking for?

Proposals will be evaluated in accordance with Draft SIR DTFA01-02-R-031130.

34. Do we need to show cash flow evidence (such as letter from the bank) to support first two months of payroll, as the FAA will pay in arrears?

Final SIR’s DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130, Section L.18 will be revised to incorporate a certification requirement. Please note that Section L.18 requires evidence of sufficient funds to cover expenditures “to accommodate the Government delays in making payments for a period of ninety days/3months”.

35. Section B:  There were no station listings for Groups 2 and 4, yet Section C has CLINS and station listings.  Were these missing station listings a simple omission from Section B?

There are 2 Draft SIR’s.  DTFA01-02-R-031130 is the SIR that contains Groups 2 and 4.

36. Will appropriate Department of Labor wage determination tables be included in the final Statement of Work (SOW) and Request for Proposal (RFP)?

We have requested wage rates from DOL and expect them to be in shortly.  As soon as they are received they will posted on the internet for Draft SIR’s DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130.

37. Will a list of current incumbent contractors (sorted by region and location) be provided?  This will allow prime bidders to search for potential sub-contractors.

Yes, a list of current contractors is attached. 

38. Will a list of current contract costs be provided prior to the release of the SOW and RFP?  If this information is available, will you require submittal of a Freedom of Information Act request?

If requested we will provide this information.  A Freedom of Information Act request is not required for this information.

39. CLIN numbers for Section B, Group 7 (specifically TUL, DAL, and DFW) do not match CLIN numbers in Section C for same stations.

This will be corrected in the final version of SIR’s DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130.

40. Section C, Part I, paragraph 2.7 defines disposition of Meteorological Form 1M-10C.  Is this form computer-generated or still a paper issue?  If it is a computer-generated form, can these forms be transmitted to appropriate agencies via electronic mail as required?

The forms defined in the draft SIR DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130 is not computer generated.  These forms must be submitted in accordance with the submittal instructions identified in Section C.2.7.

41. Section C, Part I, paragraph 3.1.3 states the Contractor shall be responsible for a commercial business telephone line.  Is this a mandatory requirement?  Will the government provide telephone service for “Official Use Only” matters?

Under Draft SIR’s DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130 the Contractor is responsible for a commercial business line.  The government will not provide a line for “Official Use Only.”

42. Section C, Part I, paragraph 5.2.6.  If the Contractor hires incumbent personnel already assigned for a particular station, must they be re-certified by the National Weather Service (NWS) or will current certification be accepted?

Certification requirements must be in accordance with Draft SIR’s DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130, Section C.5.2.

43. What is the current fee of the NWS certification test?

There is no charge.

44. Section C, Part I, paragraph 6.2 defines Contractor costs, including helium purchase.  Are there any stations within the 10 groups that require helium storage and use?  If so, please identify which locations.

Under DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130 all sites require helium storage and use.

45. Section C, Part I, paragraph 8.0 discusses Quality Assurance (QA).  What are the QA standards as defined by this contract?

See Section C.2.1 under DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130.

46. Section C, Part I, paragraph 8.0 – Current CWO procedures allow the government to assess a financial penalty for sub-standard performance based upon QA statistics.  There is no mention of this procedure in the draft SIR.  Will this policy be continued in any new CWO contract?  

See Section C.8.1.4 of draft SIR DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130.

47. Section G, paragraph G.11 – This paragraph states funding is not available beyond September 30, 2000.  Please provide current funding availability.

Paragraph G.11 of Draft SIR DTFA01-02-R-03113 and DTFA01-02-R-031130 will be revised.

48. Section H, paragraph H.20 – this paragraph states all sub-contractors must be approved by the Contracting Officer and permission must be submitted in writing.  May the prime contractor submit this request with the proposal bid, or must it be accomplished after contract award?

The prime contractor is required to submit the subcontract plan with the proposed bid. 

49. Section H, paragraph H.33 – this paragraph states that all potential bidders must be classified with NAIC code of 541990 and a size standard of $5 million or less over the past three years.  This size standard limits growth of any contractor and could act as a prohibitive qualifier for any subsequent contracts in the FAA CWO program.  Is this code applicable for a contract this large?  

The contracting officer determines the appropriate NAICS code based on the scope of work.  NAICS code 541990 is applicable to the CWO Program.

50. Can you provide a list of employee names on the current contracts to be released with the final SIR?
We cannot provide a list of employee names under the current contract.

51. It is possible that the FAA Security Office could accept an individual’s current security clearance from an incumbent company or from another Federal Agency
An individual’s security clearance may be accepted if it meets the FAA’s Security requirements.  Prior to the acceptance of a clearance, the Contractor must submit a list of all individuals with current clearances to the Contracting Officer for submission to the Security Office for validation of the security clearance. 

52. How many past performance references are required under L.17.2.1?
Section L.17.2.1 will be revised to state “a minimum of three contracts per team…”
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